
Jackson City Council Agenda 

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting 
Jackson City Hall, 33 Broadway, Jackson, California 95642 

Public Teleconference Line: 1-623-404-9000 
Meeting ID:  149 727 5231 

Join from PC, Mac, Linux, iOS or Android: https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1497275231 

Teleconference participants will be muted upon entry. Should you wish to speak upon Public Comment, please “Raise 
your Hand”, you will be unmuted one at a time and asked to state your name.  Those calling in enter *6 to unmute and 
*9 to mute.

Note:  all City Council meetings are recorded. 

Public attendance is optional but we strongly encourage the public to participate from home.  If attending in-person, 
there is limited seating due to following the social distancing guidelines and face coverings are required. 

Public Comments will also be accepted by email at cinfo@ci.jackson.ca.us. All emails MUST be received by 4:00 pm 
day of meeting.  Late submissions will not be accepted.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, you should contact the Office of the City Clerk at (209) 223-
1646 (voice) or (209) 223-3141 (fax). 

1. CEREMONIAL.

• Proclamation to designate November 1, 2020 as EXTRA MILE DAY.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

Approval of agenda for this date; any and all off-agenda items must be approved by the City Council 
(pursuant to §54954.2 of the Government Code.) 

3. PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA.

Discussion items only, no action will be taken.  Any person may address the Council at this time on any 
subject within the jurisdiction of the City Council.  Please note – there is a three (3) minute limit. 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR.

Items listed on the consent calendar are considered routine and may be enacted by one motion.  Any item 
may be removed for discussion at the request of a Council member. 

a. Approval of the September 28, 2020 Meeting Minutes.
b. Approval of Expenditure Report in the amount of $242,957.62.
c. Approval of Payroll Expenditure Report in the amount of $293,991.83.
d. Receive Jackson Building Department for Monthly Report for September 2020.
e. Receive Jackson Fire Department Monthly Report for September 2020.
f. Receive Jackson Police Department Monthly Report for September 2020.

Page 4

Page 5
Page 12
Page 14
Page 17
Page 22
Page 27

Page 1 of 39 Page 1 of 39

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1497275231&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1602603817049000&usg=AOvVaw1R0DoQv2BP4Fq1azbyK_D2


Jackson City Council Agenda           Tuesday, October 13, 2020 

2 

5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.

This section is to provide staff an opportunity to present oral status reports on issues.  No legal action is 
expected to be taken by the Council. 

6. COUNCIL REPORTS.

This section is to provide Council members an opportunity to present reports on their activities and to 
request items be placed on future agendas. 

7. DISCUSSION CALENDAR.

a. FY 19/20 Financial Reports Summary Review and FY 20/21 First Quarter Budget Review.
b. Possible Authorization to Apply for 2nd Round Homeless Emergency Aid Program Grant.

8. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT.

Regular meeting adjournment. 

9. CLOSED SESSION.

• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS PROPERTY ROW
ACCQUISITION FOR Pitt Bridge Project:, Agency negotiator: Yvonne Kimball, City
Manager, and Josh Nelson, City Attorney Negotiating parties: Property Owners: Norrris &
Hogue (APN #020-200-028), Brown & Heath (APN# 020-026-005)

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant
exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: 1 case

10. CLOSED SESSION ADJOURNMENT.

Closed Session adjournment. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

October 14, 2020 10:00 am Cemetery Meeting (Cancelled) 
October 19, 2020 6:30 pm Planning Commission Meeting 
October 26, 2020 7:00 pm Council Meeting 

UPCOMING CLOSURE DATES FOR CITY OFFICES: 

November 11, 2020 Veteran’s Day 
November 26-27, 2020 Thanksgiving 

Page 29
Page 33

Page 37

Page 2 of 39 Page 2 of 39



Jackson City Council Agenda           Tuesday, October 13, 2020 

3 

Posted:   City Hall, 33 Broadway, Jackson 

Agenda materials will be available for review (pursuant to §54957.5 Government Code Section) in the City Clerk’s office in 
City Hall. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, you 
should contact the Office of the City Clerk at (209) 223-1646 (voice) or (209) 223-3141 (fax).  Notification 48 hours prior to 

the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting. 

Visit our website at http://ci.jackson.ca.us 
for copies of previous agendas, minutes and City budget. 

Page 3 of 39 Page 3 of 39



HONORING 

Extra Mile Day 
A Proclamation Commemorating November 01, 2020 as Extra Mile Day 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, CA, is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy exists within 
the entire community when its individual citizens collectively “go the extra mile” in personal effort, volunteerism, 
and service; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, CA, is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their personal 
contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly and with total effort, commitment, and 
conviction to their individual ambitions, family, friends, and community; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, CA, is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate 
individuals and organizations within its community who “go the extra mile” in order to make a difference and lift up 
fellow members of their community; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, CA, acknowledges the mission of Extra Mile America to create 550 Extra 
Mile cities in America and is proud to support “Extra Mile Day” on November 1, 2020. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor of the City of Jackson, CA, do hereby proclaim November 1, 2020, to be Extra 
Mile Day. I urge each individual in the community to take time on this day to not only “go the extra mile” in his or 
her own life, but to also acknowledge all those who are inspirational in their efforts and commitment to make their 
organizations, families, community, country, or world a better place. 

Given under the signatures duly noted below and Seal of the City of 
Jackson, California, this 13th day of October, 2020. 

Bob Stimpson, Mayor 

Connie Gonsalves, Vice-Mayor 

Wayne Garibaldi, Councilmember 

ATTEST:
Marilyn Lewis, Councilmember 

John Georgette, City Clerk Keith Sweet, Councilmember 

Page 4 of 39 Page 4 of 39

Item 1   Proclamation - Extra Mile Day



CITY OF JACKSON 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

September 28, 2020 

Mayor and Council Members 
Robert Stimpson, Mayor 
Connie Gonsalves, Vice Mayor 
Wayne Garibaldi, Council Member 
Keith Sweet, Council Member – via teleconference 

ABSENT:  Marilyn Lewis, Council Member 

John Georgette, City Clerk 

Staff Members: 
Josh Nelson, City Attorney 
Yvonne Kimball, City Manager 
Bree Wilder, Acting Public Works Superintendent 
Debbie Mackey, Fire Chief 
Chris Mynderup, Police Chief 
Patti Ungaro, Administrative Assistant 

Mayor Stimpson called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG. 

Mayor Stimpson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

Motion to approve the City Council Agenda dated September 28, 2020 as presented. Moved
by Vice Mayor Gonsalves, seconded by Councilmember Garibaldi, and carried by a 4 to 0
roll call vote:

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis, 
ABSTAIN: None 

2. PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA.

Discussion items only, no action will be taken.  Any person may address the Council at this time on any
subject within the jurisdiction of the City Council.  Please note – there is a three (3) minute limit.

Paul Jones, Jackson resident, offered prayer.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR.

Items listed on the consent calendar are considered routine and may be enacted by one motion.  Any
item may be removed for discussion at the request of a Council Member.

a. Approval of the August 24, 2020 Meeting Minutes.
b. Approval of the September 14, 2020 Meeting Minutes.
c. Approval of Expenditure Report in the amount of $170,174.12.

Page 5 of 39 Page 5 of 39

Item 4a  Council Meeting Minutes - 9/28/20

Page 5 of 39 Page 5 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020  Page 2 
 
 
d. Receive Treasurer’s Report for July 2020.  
e. Receive Jackson Building Department for Monthly Report for August 2020. 
f. Jackson Lion’s Club Halloween Parade Application for Special Event/Parade Permit. 
g. Acknowledgement of Jackson’s project submission to Amador County Countywide Economic 

Development Strategy (CEDS) study.  
 
Motion to approve the Consent Calendar dated September 28, 2020 as presented. Moved by Council 
Member Garibaldi, seconded by Vice Mayor Gonsalves, and carried by a 4 to 0 roll call vote: 

  
AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
4. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 

 
This section is to provide staff an opportunity to present oral status reports on issues.  No legal action is 
expected to be taken by the Council. 
 
Acting Public Works Superintendent, Bree Wilder 

• They had a couple water main breaks; one at Westview and one at Sutter St.  
• They have the Water Polo team at the swimming pool now every Monday-Wednesday-Friday. 
• They have the new Maintenance Worker I, Tyke Woden, on board now, he’s very 

knowledgeable and working out well. 
 
Fire Chief, Debbie Mackey  

• On September 18 they were called to a fire at Terrace View in the landscape area of the 
development. The fire was on a hill towards a fence line with no one in attendance. She is 
reviewing footage and questioning residents; fire remains under investigation. 

• On September 22 they responded to a fire at Les Schwab Tires.  The fire was brought quickly 
under control from responding personnel. A suspect is in custody, this is in Amador Fire 
jurisdiction so they will be conducting the investigation. 

• Chief Mackey is reviewing the Weed Abatement Ordinance with CM Kimball to give clear 
direction on what constitutes a fire hazard as well as a simplified enforcement strategy. 

• Our personnel are back from the North Complex Fire, getting caught up on much needed rest and 
we are preparing for the next deployment. 

• The arson case for Ernie Marier was scheduled for jury trial today, he plead guilty to a lesser 
charge. 

• The arson case for Jay Walters has been vacated, he passed away while in custody. 
• Evacuation Maps for City of Jackson are completed and will be mailed out with the water bills 

and mailed to those who are on e-bill. 
 

Police Chief, Chris Mynderup 
• JPD issued a press release on September 18th regarding the arrest of 33-year-old Nicholas 

Federman on an investigation they conducted who was in possession of thousands of images 

Page 6 of 39 Page 6 of 39Page 6 of 39 Page 6 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020 Page 3 

relating to child pornography. He was arrested after a search warrant and arrest warrant were 
obtained.  They searched both his vehicle and motorhome; several cellular phones and iPad type 
devices were collected that are being analyzed. JPD found out Mr. Federman was arrested in 
January 2012 for the same charge and selling marijuana in the cemetery. He received his 
registration status of 290 on that case and has this case against him. Depending on the number of 
photos found on the devices collected, he could be looking at a Federal charge. 

• JPD participated in a drive-by birthday celebration on Thursday.  We believe for the oldest City
of Jackson resident, 105-year-old Vivian Fernandez.

• JPD also went out to monitor the Pro-Trump vehicle procession through Jackson.  There were no
issues, they were for the most part following the traffic laws, had a chat with a couple people on
riding safely in a vehicle.  A lot of honking and flags waving and they ended up at Mel’s, who
probably had a record-breaking Taco Tuesday!

City Attorney, Josh Nelson updated Council on the Bill mentioned last week, 80992 which amends the 
Brown Act which clarifies that public officials can use social media postings as long as no other member 
of the legislative body responds to the posting.  That bill was signed by the Governor and will take effect 
January 01, 2021. Nice to have clarity from the Legislature on exactly how social media plays with the 
Brown Act.  

City Planner, Susan Peters 
• General Plan, the consultants are working on the baseline studies and existing conditions in the

city. Once this is done, after the Elections, new Council and probably a changed Planning
Commission, we can start the Community Workshops on General Plan Updates.  The League of
California Cities Conference is coming up and will have some classes on General Plan that
would be beneficial for you at a low cost.  In January, we will be hitting the ground running with
the workshops beginning.

• For the Planning Department after this Rezone, the only application she has pending is a planned
development amendment in Jackson View for a couple different lots requiring front yard
setbacks.

• Working with Rosanne Chamberlain at LAFCO on some cleanup annexations.  There is a
property owner on Jackson Gate who submitted an application to fix a previous annexation as
their lot is basically split by city boundaries and at the same time LAFCO will be working with
the city to clean up four other locative county properties.

City Manager, Yvonne Kimball 
• The Polar Bears swimming team sent a Thank You to the City Council and Staff.
• Working with ACT on a promotion plan.
• Working with Chief Mackey on a preliminary evacuation map that will be mailed with the water

bills and posted to the website.

5. COUNCIL REPORTS.

This section is to provide Council members an opportunity to present reports on their activities and to
request item be placed on future agendas.

Councilmember Sweet – nothing to report.

Page 7 of 39 Page 7 of 39Page 7 of 39 Page 7 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020 Page 4 

Councilmember Lewis – absent. 

Councilmember Garibaldi – Nothing to report however, he did meet with Mayor Stimpson and 
Supervisor Pat Crew reviewing questions and concerns relating to the PERS Funding and Unfunded 
Liability and their consensus was to hold off for the time being.  The Financing Plan was okay, the big 
issue was that even though they would be saving the City over $1 million, one of the risks it entails is 
putting $6 million in new money into PERS’ hands in Sacramento.  In PERS, the return would be 
satisfactory.  Their return in the latest year was 4.7% and they are charging COJ 7% which is part of the 
motivation in doing the re-financing.  If we were to give PERS the additional $6 million and the stock 
market and their investments happen to tank 10-15%, in which we are historically overdue for, we 
would be underwater another $1 million. His personal suggestion to Yvonne and future Council’s would 
be when we go into a recession next time and the stock market tanks 15-20%, you can be patient.  As 
history occurs, there will always be peaks and troughs. It we were to give the $6 million, give it to them 
at a time where the earnings would be more than the 4.7-5% than they are currently getting and reduce 
the risk. 

Vice Mayor Gonsalves – nothing to report. 

Mayor Stimpson – nothing to report. 

6. DISCUSSION CALENDAR.

For the record: Action minutes provide the necessary documentation of City Council actions and audio
recordings are retained for those desiring more detail on particular agenda item discussion.  These audio
recordings provide an accurate and comprehensive backup of City Council deliberations and citizen
discussion.

a. Public Hearing: 2nd Reading Rezone / GP Amendment Old Court House.  Resolution No.
2020-35 Amending the City of Jackson’s General Plan Land Use Designation and Zoning
Map and Ordinance No. 718 Rezoning 108 & 204 Court St. and 42 Summit St.

Councilmember Garibaldi excused himself due to conflict of interest. 

City Planner, Susan Peters, provided overview for the 2nd Reading as presented in the Council Packet. 

Mayor Stimpson opened for public comment, after no public comment Mayor Stimpson brought back to 
the council. 

Motion to approve both Resolution No. 2020-35 and Ordinance No. 718 dated September 28, 2020 
as presented.  Moved by Vice Mayor Gonsalves, seconded by Councilmember Sweet, and carried by 
a 3 to 0 roll call vote: 

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: Garibaldi 

Page 8 of 39 Page 8 of 39Page 8 of 39 Page 8 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020 Page 5 

b. Possible Acceptance of the 2020 Cost Allocation Study and Direction of Designating the
additional fund for Specific Purposes.

City Manager, Yvonne Kimball, was pleased to present the 2020 Cost Allocation Study as this has been 
a long journey.  The last study the city had done was in 2005 and now we have the 2020 completed as 
provided in the packet.  There was a significant amount of time and work involved preparing the study 
as a lot of detailed information has to be verified.  The end result is, should Council decide to adopt this 
plan, there will be additional transfer from water and sewer fund into the general fund as shown on the 
table (page 46 in the packet) that describes the differences. 

Councilmember Garibaldi asked Mark Hildebrand to provide a summary overview on how he 
approached this study and what the results are.  Mark Hildebrand followed with a brief overview of the 
study as requested. He explained that the study develops a methodology to equitably allocate all 
operational departments expenses back to the internal services and the study determines how much the 
internal service departments should recover from each department or fund.  The internal services include 
expenses for administration, council and other overhead costs.  In the end, the water and the sewer funds 
will transfer enough dollars to the General Fund to cover the burden that the utility funds put on the 
general fund. 

Following the presentation, Mayor Stimpson asked Council for any questions.  No questions were 
brought forth.  Councilmember Sweet stated he was pleased with the way the study was presented.  He 
looked at the numbers very carefully with Yvonne and agrees with her suggestion of how to proceed.  
Mayor Stimpson opened for public comment, after hearing no comments, he brought back to Council.  
CM Kimball asked for 2 motions; one to adopt the cost allocation study and secondly, if Council does 
not need any additional discussion, would be to go along with staff recommendation to set aside the 
allocated amount aside for special purposes. CM Garibaldi agrees but would like to agendize at a future 
meeting, before the end of year, to discuss how we set aside that money. 

Motion to approve, accept, and adopt the 2020 Cost Allocation Study dated September 28, 
2020 as presented.  Moved by Councilmember Garibaldi, seconded by Vice Mayor 
Gonsalves, and carried by a 4 to 0 roll call vote: 

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: None 

Motion to set aside the additional funds resulting from the Cost Allocation to go into the General 
Fund and that we agendize at a future meeting to discuss how those might be earmarked dated 
September 28, 2020 as presented. Moved by Councilmember Garibaldi, seconded by Vice Mayor 
Gonsalves, and carried by a 4 to 0 roll call vote: 

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: None 

Page 9 of 39 Page 9 of 39Page 9 of 39 Page 9 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020 Page 6 

c. Possible Acceptance of CARES Act Fund Allocations Agreements with Amador County.

CM Kimball explained this was a project that involved a lot of team work, including from Mayor 
Stimpson who worked with the County to get the city additional CARES funding that the County 
received from the State.  There are 2 agreements in the packet; one for the City of Jackson in the amount 
up to $65,000 and one for Jackson Fire Department for up to $10,000.  Both agreements are 
substantiated with vendor quotes explaining planned expenditures. CM Kimball requests Council to 
enter into agreement with the County. 

Council had brief discussion with CM Garibaldi reminding us that the expenditures have to be COVID 
related. VM Gonsalves asked whether County was okay with the proposed projects because they looked 
different than a few weeks ago.  CM Kimball confirmed that the requested expenditures were approved 
by County. She also recalled how this discussion was initiated a few weeks ago.  CM Garibaldi wanted 
to publicly thank the County and District 1 Supervisor Crew for the CARES Act funds for City of 
Jackson.  

Mayor Stimpson opened for Public Comment.  After hearing none and seeing none, he moved back to 
Council. 

Motion to enter into agreement with Amador County regarding our proposal with CARES Act 
Fund Allocations for both City of Jackson and COJ Fire Department dated September 28, 2020 
as presented. Moved by Vice Mayor Gonsalves, seconded by Councilmember Garibaldi, and 
carried by a 4 to 0 roll call vote: 

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: None 

Mayor Stimpson announced Regular Session will break at 7:50pm for Closed Session and return to 
Regular Session for last Discussion Item. 

7. CLOSED SESSION.

• CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Agency designated representatives: Yvonne Kimball; Josh Nelson 
Employee organizations: Jackson Police Officers Association, Jackson SEIU 

8. DISCUSSION CALENDAR (CONT’D).

d. Possible salary adjustment for the city manager.

CA Nelson stated with consistent Council discussion that he respectfully requests a motion to authorize 
two (2) 5% salary increases for the City Manager.  The first increase effective on her anniversary date, 
the second increase effective January 21, 2021.  He also requests the Mayor be authorized to executive 
the 2nd Amendment to the City Manager’s employment agreement to clarify that Ms. Kimball will no 

Page 10 of 39 Page 10 of 39Page 10 of 39 Page 10 of 39



Council Meeting Minutes – September 28, 2020 Page 7 

longer be eligible for the PERS Care medical health option.  She will be eligible for the PERS Choice or 
equivalent and that practice being the most recent SEIU MOU.  In doing so, the raises will effectively be 
cost neutral.  

Motion to approve as stated by CA Nelson above dated September 28, 2020 as presented. Moved by 
Councilmember Garibaldi, seconded by Councilmember Sweet, and carried by a 4 to 0 roll call 
vote: 

AYES: Stimpson, Gonsalves, Garibaldi, Sweet 
NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lewis 
ABSTAIN: None 

9. REGULAR SESSION ADJOURNMENT.

Mayor Stimpson adjourned the meeting at 8:31 p.m.

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 
John Georgette, City Clerk Date Approved 

Page 11 of 39 Page 11 of 39Page 11 of 39 Page 11 of 39



Item 4b  Expenditure Report

Page 12 of 39 Page 12 of 39



Page 13 of 39 Page 13 of 39Page 13 of 39 Page 13 of 39



Page 14 of 39 Page 14 of 39

Item 4c  Payroll Expenditure Report - September 2020

Page 14 of 39 Page 14 of 39



Page 15 of 39 Page 15 of 39Page 15 of 39 Page 15 of 39



Page 16 of 39 Page 16 of 39Page 16 of 39 Page 16 of 39



BUILDING REPORT DATA – SEPTEMBER 2020 Michael J. Hooper, Building Department 
TOTAL PERMITS: 18 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST: $351,621.00 
TOTAL FEES COLLECTED: $9,253.94 

PERMITS CONSTRUCTION COST FEES TO BE COLLECTED 
BLDGS: (0) 
NEW SFD: (0) 
ACCESSORY: (0)
NEW COM: (0) 

ADDITION: (0) 
DECK:  (0) 
DEMOLITION:  (0) 
ELECTRICAL:  (3) $38,407.00 $1,775.90 
FIRE PROTECTION: (0) 
GRADING: (0) 
MECHANICAL:  (6) $69,784.00 $2,090.21 
MISCELLANEOUS: (2) $32,000.00 $1,143.76 
PATIO COVER:  (0)
PLUMBING:  (0)
REMODEL: (0)
REROOF: (1) $14,430.00 $431.45  
SIGN:  (2) $0.00 $50.00 
SITE IMPROVEMENT: (0)
SOLAR:  (3) $45,000.00 $1,271.05 
SWIMMING POOL: (0)
TENANT IMP:  (1) $152,000.00 $2,491.57 
WINDOWS: (0)

The Building Department processed 18 total permits in September.  The total number of permits 
decreased from August’s total of 19 permits processed.   

Construction projects continue to be unpredictable during this season.  During the fall, as 
weather permits, projects should continue.  Plans have been submitted for four new single-
family dwellings.  Site work has begun at Jackson View on lots 67, 68, 74 and 75.  Applications 
for these lots were approved in December of 2019.  Site Improvements at the Five Star Storage 
facility on Thomas Drive continues and new storage units are being erected as we speak. 

TESLA Energy Operations Inc. continues their work to install charging stations at the Busi Parking 
Lot.  All equipment and electrical infrastructure have been installed.  Restoration of the parking 
lot will begin on Monday, October 12.  This project is on schedule to be completed the middle of 
October. 

City Staff and Adams Ashby Group continue to work with property owners who qualify for sewer 
replacement grant funds.  An application has been submitted for a sewer lateral replacement on 
Peek Hill.  This is a problematic area where multiple sewers are connected to one another 

Page 17 of 39 Page 17 of 39

Item 4d  Building Department Monthly Report - September 2020

Page 17 of 39 Page 17 of 39



before they reach the City Sewer Main.  Staff will keep Council updated on these projects as 
they relate to the City of Jackson SSMP. 
 

CODE ENFORCEMENT UPDATE: 
 
There have been several complaints made about out outdoor cannabis cultivation.  The City of 
Jackson Development Code, Title 17, Article II, 17.07.45, “Personal Use and Cultivation of 
Marijuana”, does not allow outdoor cultivation.  When complaints are received property owners 
and tenants are notified and informed of the regulations set forth in the development code.  
These complaints have been handled without incident. 
 
There are no other pressing Code Enforcement Issues at this time. 

 
PROJECTED: 
 

The Building Department will remain optimistic, as usual, moving into the final months of 2020.  
All around…  The pulse within the construction community remains strong. 
 
For comparison…  September of 2019 produced 16 approved building permits. 
 
As always, if you have any questions or comments please feel free to let staff know.  Council 
feedback is always welcome and appreciated. 

 
ATTACHMENTS - SEPTEMBER 2020 Building Permit Log 

Page 18 of 39 Page 18 of 39Page 18 of 39 Page 18 of 39



Page: 1 of 3 

Permit 
Report

09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020 

Permit # Permit Date Permit Type Description Parcel # Parcel 
Address

Project Cost Total Fees 

Group: Electrical 

8892 9/30/2020 Electrical ELECTRICAL: 
Temporary 
Power Pole 
with 100A 
Service Panel 

044-530-026-
000

1843 
GOLDSTONE 
AVE. 

1,600 $211.50 

8889 9/30/2020 Electrical ELECTRICAL: 
Installation of 
30 kW 
Emergency 
Backup 
Generator with 
ATS, Existing 
200A  Sub-
Panel 

20-312-014-
00

415 
BROADWAY 

29,307 $1,338.40 

8884 9/28/2020 Electrical ELECTRICAL: 
Install Backup 
Generator 

20-243-008-
00

34 SUMMIT 
STREET 

7,500 $226.00 

38,407 $1,775.90 

Group Total: 3 

Group: Mechanical 

8888 9/30/2020 Mechanical HVAC Furnace 
Changeout, 
Water Heater 
Replacement 

44-371-009-
00

210 TERRACE 
VIEW CIRCLE 

5,000 $150.15 

8886 9/28/2020 Mechanical HVAC Package 
Unit Changeout 

20-332-036-
00

500 STATE 
HIGHWAY 
049 

9,900 $296.32 

8885 9/28/2020 Mechanical HVAC Package 
Unit Changeout 

44-351-014-
00

133 TERRY 
PLACE 

9,100 $272.45 

8882 9/23/2020 Mechanical HVAC Package 
Unit Changeout 

20-332-038-
00

420 SOUTH 
AVENUE 

11,982 $358.43 

Page 19 of 39 Page 19 of 39Page 19 of 39 Page 19 of 39



Page: 2 of 3 

8881 9/23/2020 Mechanical HVAC Package 
Unit Changeout 

44-351-001-
00

105 ERINN 
PLACE 

18,802 $561.86 

8879 9/16/2020 Mechanical HVAC Package 
Unit Changeout 

20-410-041-
00

201 
VUKOVICH 
WAY 

15,000 $451.00 

69,784 $2,090.21 

Group Total: 6 

Group: Miscellaneous 

8893 9/30/2020 Miscellaneous MISC: 
Detached RV 
Canopy/Carport 

20-060-025-
00

1210 
JACKSON 
GATE ROAD 

12,000 $546.16 

8883 9/28/2020 Miscellaneous Convert 
Existing 
Attached 
Carport to 
Attached 
Garage 

20-214-011-
00

307 PINE 
STREET 

20,000 $597.60 

32,000 $1,143.76 

Group Total: 2 

Group: Reroof 

8891 9/30/2020 Reroof REROOF: 
Remove and 
Replace, Like 
For Like, Repair 
Wood As 
Needed. 

44-085-010-
00

10170 
ARGONAUT 
DRIVE 

14,430 $431.45 

14,430 $431.45 

Group Total: 1 

Group: Sign 

8877 9/9/2020 Sign Commercial 
Sign 

20-200-065-
00

601 COURT 
STREET 

0 $25.00 

8876 9/9/2020 Sign Commercial 
Sign 

20-200-065-
00

601 COURT 
STREET 

0 $25.00 

0 $50.00 

Group Total: 2 

Group: Solar 

8890 9/30/2020 Solar SOLAR:  Roof-
Mounted Solar 
PV System, 
6.72 kW, 21 
Modules, 1 
Inverter, 
Existing 200A 
Service Panel, 
Tesla 
Powerwall2 

44-352-001-
00

308 
WESTVIEW 
DRIVE 

27,000 $499.51 

Page 20 of 39 Page 20 of 39Page 20 of 39 Page 20 of 39



Page: 3 of 3 

Battery 

8887 9/29/2020 Solar Solar 
Integrated 
Battery Back-
Up System 

44-090-037-
00

780 
ARGONAUT 
DRIVE 

6,000 $274.98 

8880 9/17/2020 Solar SOLAR:  Roof-
Mounted Solar 
PV System, 
4.92 kW, 12 
Modules with 
Micro-
Inverters, 
Existing 200A 
Panel 

044-520-029-
000

142 
EMERALD 
LANE 

12,000 $496.56 

45,000 $1,271.05 

Group Total: 3 

Group: Tenant Improvement 

8878 9/16/2020 Tenant 
Improvement 

Interior and 
Exterior Tenant 
Improvement 
to Existing 
Taco Bell 
Restaurant 

20-381-018-
00

541 SOUTH 
STATE 
HIGHWAY 49 

152,000 $2,491.57 

152,000 $2,491.57 

Group Total: 1 

351,621 $9,253.94 

Total Records: 18 10/7/2020 

Page 21 of 39 Page 21 of 39Page 21 of 39 Page 21 of 39



Page 22 of 39 Page 22 of 39

Item 4e  Jackson Fire Dept Monthly Report 

Page 22 of 39 Page 22 of 39



Page 23 of 39 Page 23 of 39



Page 24 of 39 Page 24 of 39



Page 25 of 39 Page 25 of 39



Page 26 of 39 Page 26 of 39



Jackson Police Department 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

From: Chris Mynderup, Chief of Police 

Subject: Monthly Activity Report – September 2020 

Date: October 5, 2020 

Total Number of Incidents  819 

Calls for Service  349 

Officer Initiated Incidents  470 

Police Reports  101 

Arrests  40 (34 Misdemeanor, 6 Felony) 

Traffic Collisions  13 (9 non-injury, 4 hit and run) 

Assault & Battery 3 

Disturbance of the Peace  45 

Public Intoxication 4 

Driving Under the Influence 1 

Child Abuse Investigations 1 

Elder Abuse Investigations 1 

Sexual Crimes  0 

Domestic Incidents 7 (3 arrests) 

Coroner’s Case  0 

Mental Health Detention  6 

Burglary  4 

Robbery  0 

Page 27 of 39 Page 27 of 39

Item 4f  Jackson Police Department Monthly Report

Page 27 of 39 Page 27 of 39



Grand/Petty Theft 13 

Vandalism 5 

Vehicle Theft  1 

Arson  0 

Traffic Stops 156 (65 citations: 55 infractions 10 misdemeanor) 

Warrant Cites/Arrests 9 

Security Checks  194 

Total Incidents Year to Date: 8238 
Total Calls for Service YTD: 2578 
Total Officer Initiated YTD: 5660 

Comparison to 2019 

Total Incidents for September 2019 866 
Total Calls for Service September 2019 325 
Total Officer Initiated August 2019 541 

Total YTD Incidents up to September 2019 7434 
Total YTD Calls for Service up to September 2019  2646 
Total YTD Officer Initiated up to September 2019  4788 

Page 28 of 39 Page 28 of 39Page 28 of 39 Page 28 of 39



City of Jackson  
Council Meeting Memorandum 

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Yvonne Kimball, City Manager 

Date: October 7, 2020 

Agenda Item #7a: FY 19/20 budget v. actual (unaudited); 
FY 20/21 Budget Status Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the City Council review the reports.  

DISCUSSION 

Enclosed are summary status reports for the FY 19/20 which ended on July 31, 2020.  All inter 
fund transfers or yearend journal entries have taken place; all revenues and expenditures have 
been accounted for.  Barring any corrections by the auditors, the General Fund ended with a 
very good fund balance, at over $600,000.  This helped us for the time in the last decade to meet 
the requirement of a committed fund balance at 16.67% of total expenditure.  I want to 
congratulate the Council and the staff on this achievement!  

The final accounting closure of the New York Ranch road project in August 2019 contributed to 
this surplus.  This is an indication of better accounting practices.  Additionally, the early cost 
saving measures the city implemented played a role coupled with higher than anticipated 
property taxes and sales tax revenues.  However, COVID economy is not unpredictable.  We are 
not quite certain how FY 20/21 will end at this point.   

The first quarter in FY 20/21 appeared to be on track and somewhat over spent at this point.  
This is consistent with past years: the first two quarters usually see more expenses as revenues 
have not been received.  However, COVID years can be unpredictable.  I remain cautious about 
future revenues.    

Enclosures: FY 19/20 review (summaries); FY 20/21 first quarter info 

Page 29 of 39 Page 29 of 39

Item 7a  FY19-20 Financial Reports Summary Review 
and FY20-21 First Quarter Budget Review

Page 29 of 39 Page 29 of 39



FY 19/20 REVIEW 

City of Jackson
FY 19/20 Status Report (by fund) as of JUNE 30, 2020

ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MUCH BETTER THAN PROJECTED IN MAY AND JUNE 2020

REVENUES EXPENSES
ADPOTED ACTUAL AS OF SUP/DEF % ADPOTED ACTUAL AS OF BALANCE %
BUDGET 6/30/2020 BUDGET 6/30/2020 REMAINING REMAINING

General Fund $4,058,831 $4,576,512 $517,681 13% $4,058,579 $3,911,651 $146,928 4%

Measure M $550,000 $591,133 $41,133 7% $675,023 $511,466 $163,557 24%

Sewer $2,700,569 $2,916,582 $216,013 8% $2,904,524 $2,557,877 $346,647 12%

Water $1,791,679 $1,842,211 $50,532 3% $2,099,376 $1,880,832 $218,544 10%

Pool $46,600 $13,735 -$32,865 -71% $102,345 $70,309 $32,036 31%

GF MAJOR REVENUES
FY 19/20 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
06/30/2020

JUNE PROJ  
YE

ACTUAL 
DIFF

PROPERTY TAXES $890,000 $920,249 $895,430 $30,249
SALES & USE TAX $940,000 $954,928 $872,000 $14,928
TOT $550,000 $546,078 $410,000 -$3,922
FRANCHISE TAXES $165,000 $172,379 $150,000 $7,379
BUSINESS LICENSES $60,000 $57,591 $57,000 -$2,409
BUS. LIC. APP FEE $12,000 $9,972 $9,822 -$2,028
MOTOR VEH LIC $381,000 $406,933 $406,933 $25,933
GAS TAXES $120,136 $116,457 $110,000 -$3,679
RENTAL CIVIC CENTER $6,000 $2,190 $2,190 -$3,810
LIVE SCAN $13,000 $7,288 $8,000 -$5,712
BUILDING PLAN CHECK $35,000 $67,981 $65,000 $32,981
BUILDING PER&INSP $157,000 $209,350 $200,000 $52,350
MICS HOMELESS GRANTS $0 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000
MISC RULE20 CREDITS TRA $0 $10,000 $0 $10,000

$166,260
New York Ranch Rd. # 4795-900 $317,002

Page 30 of 39 Page 30 of 39Page 30 of 39 Page 30 of 39



City of Jackson
General Fund Status Report for EXPENSES as of JUNE 30, 2020

ADPOTED ACTUAL AS OF DIFF/BALANCE
DEPARTMENT BUDGET 6/30/2020 REMAINING

CITY COUNCIL $197,615 $196,005 $1,610

ADMINISTRATION $875,831 $848,978 $26,853

LEGAL SERVICES $42,000 $58,371 -$16,371

CIVIC CENTER $44,533 $52,602 -$8,069

FIRE $330,749 $343,453 -$12,704

POLICE*** $1,782,520 $1,697,265 $85,255

STREETS $414,556 $371,839 $42,717

BUILDING $146,500 $144,061 $2,439

ENGINEERING $16,000 $6,900 $9,100

PLANNING $53,000 $51,976 $1,024

PARKS (& CEMETERY) $155,275 $140,201 $15,074

TOTAL EXPENSES $4,058,579 $3,911,651 $146,928

TOTAL REVENUES $4,058,579 $4,576,512
DEFICIT /SUPPLUS (REVv.EXP) $0 $664,861

PROJECTED UNAUDITED FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND ACTUAL PROJ FY19/20 PROJ

 FY 19/20 BEGIN FY19/20 END DEFICIT/GAIN
RESTRICTED (2%TOT) $444,621 $554,621
COMMITTED $109,000 $608,287
ASSIGNED $50,000
UNASSIGNED $341,716 $341,716 $608,287

TOTAL GF $895,337 $1,554,624

SEWER $756,783 $1,115,488 $500,569
WATER -$28,188 -$66,809 -$5,321

MEASURE M $505,737 $585,404 $58,000

Page 31 of 39 Page 31 of 39Page 31 of 39 Page 31 of 39



FY 20/21 INFO 

City of Jackson
FY 20/21 Status Report (by fund) as of SEPT 30, 2020

75% of the year remians.

REVENUES EXPENSES
ADPOTED YTD AS OF BALANCE % ADPOTED YTD AS OF BALANCE %
BUDGET 9/30/2019 REMAINING REMAINING BUDGET 9/30/2020 REMAINING REMAINING

General Fund * $4,006,569 $256,347 $3,750,222 94% $4,020,303 $1,492,768 $2,527,535 63%

Rec./Pool $41,000 $7,358 $33,642 82% $125,703 $54,375 $71,328 57%

Measure M $560,000 $341,111 $218,889 39% $622,000 $420,320 $201,680 32%

Sewer ** $2,917,523 $789,645 $2,127,878 73% $2,860,425 $308,353 $2,552,072 89%

Water $2,022,960 $761,213 $1,261,747 62% $2,289,308 $591,949 $1,697,359 74%

*INC. CITY CARE FUND;OLD COST ALLOCATION;AUGUST 2020 ADOPTION; PERS UAL
** UTILITY FUNDS NO COST ALLO.NO BOND PAYMENTS YET.

City of Jackson
FY 20/21 General Fund Status Report for Expenses as of SEPT. 30, 2020

75% REMAINING
EXPENSES
ADPOTED YTD AS OF BALANCE %

DEPARTMENT BUDGET 9/30/2020 REMAINING REMAINING

CITY COUNCIL $159,677 $40,263 $119,414 75%

ADMINISTRATION $873,130 $546,553 $326,577 37%

LEGAL SERVICES $45,000 $3,049 $41,951 93%

CIVIC CENTER $52,180 $11,293 $40,887 78%

FIRE $340,163 $100,926 $239,237 70%

POLICE $1,804,100 $600,753 $1,203,347 67%

STREETS $384,030 $89,406 $294,624 77%

BUILDING $145,300 $39,669 $105,631 73%

ENGINEERING $10,073 $659 $9,414 93%

PLANNING $50,000 $18,456 $31,544 63%

PARKS $156,650 $40,954 $115,696 74%

TOTAL $4,020,303 $1,491,981 $2,528,322 63%

Page 32 of 39 Page 32 of 39Page 32 of 39 Page 32 of 39



City of Jackson  
Council Meeting Memorandum 

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Yvonne Kimball, City Manager 

Date: October 7, 2020 

Agenda Item #7b: Authorization of Application for the HEAP GRANT Round II 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the City Council authorize staff to submit the attached application for a pilot homeless crisis 
intervention outreach program.  

DISCUSSION 

On Monday, we learned that the Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP) fund round II 
became available for Amador County agencies.  A total of $79,000 is available as grant money 
for eligible programs.  The City has received $14,000 in 2019 via ATCAA.    

Police Chief, Fire Chief and I met on Tuesday and decided to apply for this money to institute a 
homeless outreach pilot program.  See attached application.  

On Wednesday, ATCAA Housing Service Director approached the City to discuss the shower 
needs and suggested the City to consider a joint application with ATCAA.  Details need to be 
worked out in the following days.  Should we decide to proceed with this option, staff will 
amend the details of the application.  The application deadline is October 19.  

At any rate, it is recommended that Council authorize staff to apply for the HEAP round II 
dollars.  Alternatively, since this fund is unexpected and considering staff’s workload, Council 
can direct staff to forgo this application, which will allow other agencies more chances to obtain 
this fund.   

Enclosures: HEAP ROUND II RFP; city draft application for a crisis intervention pilot program   

Page 33 of 39 Page 33 of 39

Item 7b  2nd Round Homeless Emergency Aid Program Grant

Page 33 of 39 Page 33 of 39



CENTRAL SIERRA CONTINUUM OF CARE: 
H E A P        PROGRAM 

Request for Proposals for Use of Remaining Funds 

Funds remain from the Amador County HEAP distribution, in the amount of $79,018.  These 
funds are now being made available by the CSCoC Governing Board to other CSCoC member 
entities for eligible HEAP projects.  Applications are due by 5:00pm on October 19, 2020. 

Applicants must include in the response how the proposed activities requested will be 
directly related to providing immediate emergency assistance to people experiencing 
homelessness or at imminent risk of homelessness.  All uses must align with CA housing first 
policy.  ALL FUNDS MUST BE FOR AMADOR COUNTY ONLY. 

Each applicant for the use of remaining HEAP funds must: 
• Utilize HMIS/CES
• Submit one (1) copy, including any attachments, via email to pjdavis47@yahoo.com
• Submit one application per project
• Be prepared to submit reports as directed in the Standard Agreement, including all

HMIS outcomes
• Be prepared to sign a contract for the funds by November 30, 2020

Each application for the use of remaining HEAP funds must: 
• Have no more than a one-page narrative
• Have a one-page budget
• Submit one (1) copy of narrative and budget, via email to: pjdavis47@yahoo.com
• Round all dollar amounts to the nearest dollar
• Include the following information:

o A list of outcomes and the targeted population(s)
o Number of permanent housing placements anticipated
o Target outreach numbers
o A youth set-aside of 5%

Contracts are expected to be available for signature by November 30, 2020.  All funding must 
be expended by June 30, 2021.  The budget line items available are: 

- Services - Rental Assistance or Subsidies
- Capital Improvements - Homeless Youth Set-Aside
- Administrative Costs - Other

Questions and Completed Applications Must Be Submitted to: 
PJ Davis –  pjdavis47@yahoo.com 

Due date:  October 19, 2020 
Contact number (707) 365-7046 

Page 34 of 39 Page 34 of 39Page 34 of 39 Page 34 of 39

mailto:pjdavis47@yahoo.com


To:  PJ Davis (pjdavis47@yahoo.com)/ Central Sierra Continuum of Care 

From: City of Jackson / Yvonne Kimball, City Manager 

Date: OCTOBER 8, 2020 

Subject: HEAP funding application II (total available $79,802) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Jackson Background: 

The City of Jackson is a full-service municipal government entity.  We provide services in the 
areas of police, fire, streets, parks, planning, building, water, and sewer.  The City of Jackson has 
very limited financial and human resources.  Its general fund budget is only $4 million.  The City 
has a staff of 30.  Approximately 5,000 permanent residents live in Jackson.   

Jackson is the home to many essential service providers in Amador County, including the 
County jail, the hospital, well-used parks, numerous restaurants, a variety of grocery stores, the 
post office and gas stations.  Additionally, Jackson Rancheria Casino is only a few miles away.  
While it is an attraction, the Casino also contributes to the homeless issue in Jackson.  Due to its 
unique location, Jackson houses the majority of the county’s homeless individuals.  A recent 
informal count indicated there are about 108 homeless individuals residing within the city.  
Based on data collected by the police department, the City has at least 64 interactions with 
homeless individuals each month or 2 incidents a day.   

Recognizing Jackson’s need, in January 2019, the City received $14,000 of HEAP fund to provide 
outreach services to the homeless population.  The prior outreach effort was largely conducted 
by police officers.  It has proven to be important to build rapport with the community.   

Our Initiative: 

Since then, the City has expressed its wishes to have a larger funding in order to hire designated 
“homeless outreach coordinators” who are not law enforcement personnel.  The Coordinators 
then reach out to homeless individuals daily and endeavor to connect them with necessary 
services or job opportunities.  The Coordinators will be accompanied by the city’s Police and 
Fire Department personnel in the field.  They are the Jackson “crisis intervention task force”. 

We request $75,232 to hire four part-time Coordinators and institute a pilot crisis intervention 
task force” program for 12 weeks.  The scope of this pilot program may be evolving around 
these basic perimeters: daily log of interaction with homeless individuals, build a rapport with 
homeless individuals, refer homeless individuals to connect with services they need, collect 
data and provide future program recommendations to the City Council and the City Manager 
for consideration and implementation.  The ultimate goal is to keep the community safe and 
clean and reduce homelessness.    

Page 35 of 39 Page 35 of 39Page 35 of 39 Page 35 of 39

mailto:pjdavis47@yahoo.com)/


Jackson Funding Request/ Budget: 

1. Personnel Cost:

Coordinator costs:  4 coordinators divided into two teams and each team cover a 3- or 4-day 
shift alternatively so that daily outreach can be conducted.   

Weekly cost 

a. Coordinator hourly rate at $30 / hr; 4 hours a day; 3 -4 days a week;

2*30*4*3= $720 

2*30*4*4= $960 

b. City FTE personnel cost:

2 police officers and/or Fire Fighter; hourly compensation rate @ $65/hour. accompanying the 
team of coordinators daily for outreach and debriefing.  

Total: 2*65*4*7=$3,640 

c. City administration cost (employees OT to cover hiring, record keeping &
accounting) 5% of total costs: $266 (=0.05* $5,320)

Total weekly personnel cost: $5,586 

Total for a 12-week program: $67,032 

2. Expenses:

Coordinator uniform, supplies: $400*4= $1,200 

Computer, camera, etc.: $2,000 

Supplies and materials to hand out to homeless individuals: $5,000 

Total Expenses: $8,200 

Grand total (personnel + expenses): $75,232 

Page 36 of 39 Page 36 of 39Page 36 of 39 Page 36 of 39



Office of Enforcement | 801 K Street, Suite 2300 | Sacramento, CA 95814 | 916.341.527

State Water Resources Control Board 

October 7, 2019 Sent via electronic and Certified Mail 

Ms. Yvonne Kimball CERTIFIED MAIL 
City Manager NO. 7018 0680 0000 1010 6523 
City of Jackson 
33 Broadway 
Jackson, CA 95642  
ykimball@ci.jackson.ca.us  

Ms. Pam Marquez CERTIFIED MAIL 
Office Chief NO. 7018 0680 0000 1010 6516 
Caltrans Central Region Construction North 
3663 Arch Road, Suite 500 
Stockton, CA 95215 
pam.marquez@dot.ca.gov 

Mr. Michael Niven, President CERTIFIED MAIL 
Central Coast Financial Group, Inc. NO. 7018 0680 0000 1010 6585 
17750 Wards Ferry Road 
Sonora, CA 95370 
michaelniven10@gmail.com 

INVITATION TO ENTER INTO SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS PRIOR TO 
ISSUANCE OF ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY:  CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, CITY OF JACKSON, AND CENTRAL COAST FINANCIAL 
GROUP, DBA CCFG CONSTRUCTION 

Please read this notice carefully.  The purpose of this letter is to inform you of a 
forthcoming Administrative Civil Liability Complaint (Complaint), and to notify you of 
your opportunity to enter into settlement negotiations with Central Valley Regional 
Water Quality Control Board (Central Valley Regional Board) Prosecution Staff 
regarding the assessment of monetary penalties for your alleged failure to comply with 
the California Water Code.  

Water Code section 13385, subdivision (a)(5), authorizes the Water Boards to impose 
administrative civil liability when a person violates certain provisions of the federal Clean 
Water Act, including Section 301 (33 U.S.C. Sec. 1311), which prohibits the discharge 
of any pollutant except as authorized under a Clean Water Act permit.  

Page 37 of 39 Page 37 of 39

Item 9  Closed Session (2nd item)

mailto:ykimball@ci.jackson.ca.us
mailto:pam.marquez@dot.ca.gov
mailto:michaelniven10@gmail.com


Caltrans, City, and CCFG - 2 - October 7, 2019 

In November 2017, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) initiated a 
contract to repair and replace two storm drain lines within the state right of way in the 
City of Jackson (City) at 516 Sutter Street.  Central Coast Financial Group, Inc., doing 
business as CCFG Construction (CCFG), was awarded the contract to replace the 
storm drain lines.  On January 24, 2018, CCFG notified Underground Service Alert of 
Northern California and Nevada (USA) that it would begin excavation on January 26, 
2018.  USA sent the dig ticket to several utility companies, including the City of Jackson 
Public Works Department; however, the City did not respond to the dig ticket.  On 
January 28, 2018, CCFG began excavating to replace the storm drain lines.  On 
February 1, 2018, CCFG hit a sewer line in the excavation, resulting in the release of 
81,012 gallons of sewage, with approximately 68,912 gallons being discharged into the 
North Fork of Jackson Creek, a water of the United States.  

Caltrans, the City, and CCFG are potentially jointly and severally liable for over 
$699,000 in administrative civil liability for the alleged violation. 

Based on our review and after conducting a preliminary penalty calculation, the 
Assistant Executive Officer of the Central Valley Regional Board intends to issue a 
Complaint seeking an administrative civil liability assessment against Caltrans, the City, 
and CCFG.  A proposed penalty amount has been calculated using the methodology in 
the State Water Resources Control Board’s Water Quality Enforcement Policy 
(Enforcement Policy) and is based on facts known to date.  However, this proposed 
penalty amount is subject to modification, should additional information come to light. 
The full Enforcement Policy may be found here: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2017/040
417_9_final adopted policy.pdf 

By way of this letter, you are formally notified of the opportunity to meet to discuss the 
facts regarding the alleged violations, including the option of settlement.  This meeting 
affords you the opportunity to potentially reduce the proposed penalty amount if you 
present new information to Central Valley Regional Board Prosecution Staff, or other 
information you believe is relevant to determining an appropriate monetary penalty.  
Upon agreement, all settlement communications would be kept confidential in 
accordance with Evidence Code sections 1152 and 1154.  

In order to initiate confidential discussions to settle this matter, you must contact me by 
October 18, 2019, to schedule a time to meet with Central Valley Regional Board 
Prosecution Staff.  In addition, please provide the name and contact information for the 
attorney who will be representing you in this matter.  Once a meeting has been 
arranged, you will be provided additional information regarding the violations.  

If you do not intend to avail yourself of the opportunity to discuss a potential negotiated 
resolution, the Assistant Executive Officer will issue the Complaint and this matter will 
proceed to a formal enforcement hearing before the Central Valley Regional Board, or 
the Assistant Executive Officer may seek to refer the matter to the Attorney General’s 
Office or other prosecution agency.  

Page 38 of 39 Page 38 of 39Page 38 of 39 Page 38 of 39

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2017/040417_9_final%20adopted%20policy.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2017/040417_9_final%20adopted%20policy.pdf


Caltrans, City, and CCFG - 3 - October 7, 2019 

If you have any questions, please contact me by phone at (916) 341-5276 or by email at 
david.boyers@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

David Boyers 
Assistant Chief Counsel 
Office of Enforcement  

cc: (via email only) 

Central Valley Regional Board 
Mr. Andrew Altevogt 
andrew.altevogt@waterboards.ca.gov 

Mr. Xuan Luo 
xuan.luo@waterboards.ca.gov 

Mr. Mohammad Farhad 
mohammad.farhad@waterboards.ca.gov 

Ms. Heather Jidkov, Attorney 
Office of Enforcement 
heather.jidkov@waterboards.ca.gov 

Page 39 of 39 Page 39 of 39Page 39 of 39 Page 39 of 39

mailto:David.Boyers@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:andrew.altevogt@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:xuan.luo@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:mohammad.farhad@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:heather.jidkov@waterboards.ca.gov

	1. CEREMONIAL.
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.
	3. PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA.
	4. CONSENT CALENDAR.
	5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.
	6. COUNCIL REPORTS.
	7. DISCUSSION CALENDAR.
	8. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT.
	9. CLOSED SESSION.
	10. CLOSED SESSION ADJOURNMENT.
	4d  BUILDING REPORT DATA LOG September 2020.pdf
	BUILDING REPORT DATA, September 2020.pdf
	BUILDING REPORT LOG, September 2020.pdf

	7a  CC memo 10_13_20 FY20-21 budget rev_.pdf
	City of Jackson
	Council Meeting Memorandum

	7b1  CC memo 10_13_20 Heap grant.pdf
	City of Jackson
	Council Meeting Memorandum

	10.13.2020 agenda draft.pdf
	1. CEREMONIAL.
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.
	3. PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA.
	4. CONSENT CALENDAR.
	5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.
	6. COUNCIL REPORTS.
	7. DISCUSSION CALENDAR.
	8. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT.
	9. CLOSED SESSION.
	10. CLOSED SESSION ADJOURNMENT.

	10.13.2020 agenda draft.pdf
	1. CEREMONIAL.
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.
	3. PUBLIC MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA.
	4. CONSENT CALENDAR.
	5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.
	6. COUNCIL REPORTS.
	7. DISCUSSION CALENDAR.
	8. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT.
	9. CLOSED SESSION.
	10. CLOSED SESSION ADJOURNMENT.




